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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Port of Anacortes
January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
The results of our audit of the Port of Anacortes are summarized below in accordance with Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements
We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP).
Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the Port.

Federal Awards
Internal Control over Major Programs:
 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
We issued an unmodified opinion on the Port’s compliance with requirements applicable to its
major federal program.
We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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Identification of Major Federal Programs
The following program was selected as a major program in our audit of compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance.
CFDA No.
20.106

Program or Cluster Title
Airport Improvement Program and COVID-19 Airports Programs

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $750,000.
The Port did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
None reported.

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS
None reported.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards
Port of Anacortes
January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021
Board of Commissioners
Port of Anacortes
Anacortes, Washington
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Port of Anacortes, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Port’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated July 6, 2022.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Port’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Port’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
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significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Port’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Port’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, this
report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to disseminate
information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations.

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor
Olympia, WA
July 6, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal
Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance
Port of Anacortes
January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021
Board of Commissioners
Port of Anacortes
Anacortes, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the compliance of the Port of Anacortes, with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Port’s major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Port’s major federal programs are
identified in the auditor’s results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs.
In our opinion, the Port complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2021.
Basis for Opinion on Each Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our
report.
We are required to be independent of the Port and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
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compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on
the Port’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to the Port’s federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Port’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect a material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgement
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Port’s compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.
Performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform
Guidance includes the following responsibilities:







Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;
Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Port’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances;
Obtain an understanding of the Port’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed; and
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies
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and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the
audit.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that have not been identified.
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also
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serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor
Olympia, WA
July 6, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Port of Anacortes
January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021
Board of Commissioners
Port of Anacortes
Anacortes, Washington

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Port of Anacortes, as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Port’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Port of Anacortes, as of December 31, 2021, and the
changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
the Port and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Port’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.
Performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, includes the
following responsibilities:











Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements;
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed;
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements;
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Port’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time; and
Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Office of the Washington State Auditor

sao.wa.gov

Page 13

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed in the table
of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Port’s basic financial statements as a whole. The accompanying Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). This schedule
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 6,
2022 on our consideration of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
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over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Port’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor
Olympia, WA
July 6, 2022
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FINANCIAL SECTION
Port of Anacortes
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PORT OF ANACORTES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2021

Introduction
The following is the Port of Anacortes’ (the Port’s) Management Discussion and Analysis of financial
activities and performance for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, with selected comparative
information for the year ended December 31, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the financial
statements and notes to the financial statements, which immediately follow this discussion.
The Port is a Special Purpose Municipal Government, created in 1926 under provision of the Revised Code
of Washington (RCW Title 53). The Port is independent from other local or state governments and has
geographic boundaries that consist of Fidalgo, Guemes, Cypress, Sinclair, and other neighboring islands,
and a small strip of land bordering Padilla Bay up to and including Samish Island. The Port’s primary
mission is the fostering of economic development via job creation and maintenance of family wage jobs,
while protecting the quality of life, needs, and desires for the citizens of the district.
Five elected Commissioners, elected to four-year terms, serve as the governing body of the Port. The
Board of Commissioners appoints an Executive Director to manage Port operations, and a Port Auditor
(currently the Director of Finance and Administration) to manage the Port’s finances. Skagit County (the
County) levies and collects taxes on behalf of the Port as determined by the Commissioners. These tax
revenues go to support public access improvements/amenities, provide financing for industrial land
acquisition and development (including environmental costs) and debt service payments for general
obligation bonds.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the Port’s financial statements. The Port’s
financial statements include two components: 1) the Port’s basic financial statements, and 2) the notes
to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the Port’s basic financial statements and follow the financial
statements of this report.
The basic financial statements include: the Statement of Net Position; the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows.
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
indicate whether the Port’s financial position has improved because of the year’s activities. The Statement
of Net Position provides information on all of the Port’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows and
outflows of resources. The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources is net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as an indicator of whether the financial position of the Port is improving or deteriorating. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position show how the Port’s net position
changed during the year. These changes are reported as the underlying event occurs regardless of the
timing of related cash flows (accrual basis).
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A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Port uses only one fund, an enterprise fund, which is a
type of proprietary fund. An enterprise fund reports business type activities.

COVID-19
Background
The COVID-19 pandemic, first declared a public health emergency in Washington State in March of 2020,
is continuing to affect many parts of the world, including our State, Skagit County, and the Port of
Anacortes. On March 23, 2020, the State Governor issued a statewide “Stay Home, Stay Healthy”
proclamation, requiring individuals to stay home except for essential activities, banning social and other
gatherings, and closing all businesses with certain exceptions for essential businesses. Access to
vaccinations through emergency use authorizations became available to first responders, medical
professionals, and other vulnerable populations by the end of 2020, and widely available to people over
the age of 12, by April 2021. This prompted Washington State to follow a phased re-opening approach
based on the numbers of the population receiving vaccines. In July 2021, most restrictions were raised
and the State economy fully reopened, however introduction of new variants of the virus prolonged
guidance from the Federal government, our State Governor, the Center for Disease Control (CDC) and
local health departments encouraging individuals, governments and businesses to take certain
precautionary measures designed to prevent the spread of COVID-19. The Port has and continues to
coordinate its response to the pandemic with the Washington State Department of Health, as well as the
local county public health department.
Operations
On July 1, 2021, after 15 months of closure, the Port re-opened its Main Administrative and Harbor
Masters Offices to the public, while maintaining remote work options for certain administrative and other
staff for whom it is feasible. Despite the many months of closure, the Port was able to maintain normal
business hours to serve customers via phone or email. Port facilities, such as the Anacortes Airport, Marina
fuel stations and the Trailer Boat Launch, remained open throughout. In accordance with State Governor
proclamations, public meetings returned to in-person on July 1, 2021, with a remote option available.
Ensuring maximum protection for the health and safety of Port stakeholders has been and continues to
be the Port’s top priority during this public health emergency. In June 2020, Port Staff developed a Start
Safe Return Plan, which, aligned with Washington state guidance, is an implementation tool that ensures
Coronavirus Prevention Practices are deployed to safeguard all stakeholders from biological hazards and
address known hazards at all Port facilities. Key elements include education, social distancing, cleaning
and disinfecting, hand washing, and rigid protocol around sick and exposed employees. This Plan,
formalized as the COVID-19 Safety and Health Policy, continues to be followed and revised in accordance
with Department of Labor & Industries, CDC, and State and local health department guidance.
Financial Impacts
Despite experiencing direct expenses associated with the response to COVID-19 and some negative
impact to individual revenue streams, the Port was able to exceed budgeted operating results in both
2020 and 2021, and progress with its capital improvement initiatives as originally planned. The negative
impacts, which were most significant in 2020, have diminished in 2021 and while some areas (Marine
Terminal exports and venue rentals) have not fully recovered, others (Marina guest moorage and
recreational vehicle parking) have achieved record-breaking activity.
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Direct expenses associated with COVID-19 were primarily in the form of information technology purchases
including additional software licenses and hardware purchases to support remote work, temporary
essential personnel additional pay (in excess of their regular pay rates), personal protective equipment,
modifications to facilities, and execution of a cleaning contract with an outside vendor. An estimated
$283,000 of direct expenses, from the onset of the pandemic through December 31, 2021, was incurred,
with nearly 90% of that cost occurring in 2020.
The Port also saw individual revenue streams impacted by COVID-19. Restrictions on gatherings resulted
in event cancellations, both in terms of private venue rentals and Port-hosted community events,
beginning in mid-March 2020 and continuing throughout 2020 and 2021. While these cancellations did
impact revenues, events comprise less than 1% of the Port’s total revenues.
More significant in terms of financial impact was the decrease in global demand for oil as a result of travel
restrictions. This caused a decrease in production at local refineries and impacted the Port’s Marine
Terminal exports of refinery by-products, petroleum coke and sulfur. These products, whose pre-COVID
5-year annual average totaled approximately 349,000 metric tons, fell to 189,000 (46% decrease) and
269,000 (23% decrease) metric tons in 2020 and 2021, respectively.
On the other hand, restrictions on air travel and social gatherings (especially those indoors), resulted in a
surge in outdoor recreation, specifically, boating and camping. In 2021, the Port achieved over 21,400
guest boater nights, a 26% increase over 2020’s record-breaking 17,100 nights. Similarly, revenues from
recreational vehicle parking increased over $21,000 or 56% over the prior year. The closure of the USCanada border is assumed to be an additional factor in these results, as more boaters stayed in and around
the San Juan Islands in their summer travels.
Another factor offsetting direct expenses and lost revenues is Federal relief. The Port was awarded a series
of Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) grants through various legislative acts. As of December 31, 2021,
the Port had been awarded an estimated $162,000 in grant relief.
While the Port has, in the short-term, been able to weather the impacts of COVID-19, achieving budgeted
results and progressing its capital improvement program, the full impact of the pandemic on the Port and
the regional economy is uncertain. Despite this, we are confident that through its revenue diversity,
sufficient debt capacity, land holdings, and cash reserves the Port is well positioned to continue its mission
of economic development and job creation.
Note: Subsequent to year-end, Washington State lifted its indoor mask mandate, except for in health care
settings and public transit. As of April 1, 2022, Washington State is one of only three states to continue
their COVID-19 state of emergency.

Financial Analysis
Condensed Financial Position Information
The Statement of Net Position reflects the Port’s financial position at year-end. Financial position is
represented by the difference between assets owned and deferred outflows, and liabilities owed and
deferred inflows at a specific point in time. The difference between the two is net position. As previously
noted, changes in net position over time can be an indicator of the Port’s financial position.
Financial Highlights
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Total assets and deferred outflows of the Port exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows by
$54.421 million (reported as total net position). This is an increase of $2.742 million over the prior
year. Increased Marina activity and modest recovery in bulk product exports at the Port’s Marine
Terminal, along with a significant adjustment to pension expense as a result of GASB 68
accounting (see Note 6), contributed to a healthy net operating income. Additionally, the Port, for
the last three years, has levied a regular property tax at the maximum amount allowable resulting
in positive net non-operating revenues.
Total cash as of December 31, 2021 of $14.398 million was a decrease of $1.355 million from the
prior year. Significant progress on the Port’s capital improvement program, in particular the
completion of A-Dock demolition and replacement, was the biggest driver of this decrease in cash.
Total liabilities decreased $1.756 million over the prior year. Despite a roughly 15% increase in
the Port’s environmental remediation liability (see Note 12), the Port made principal pay downs
of its long-term debt while issuing no new debt, and recorded a significant decrease in its Net
Pension Liability as a result of GASB 68 reporting (see Note 6).

The following condensed financial information provides an overview of the Port’s financial position for
the fiscal years ended December 31:

Current assets
Capital assets, net
Other noncurrent assets
Total Assets
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position:
Net invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

2021)

2020)

$16,380,481
62,758,240
2,661,061
81,799,782

$20,335,707
58,247,793
49,547
78,633,047

655,162

700,483

6,696,388
17,746,541
24,442,929

8,126,705
18,072,038
26,198,743

3,591,410

1,455,925

52,616,119
470,290
1,334,196
$54,420,605

46,779,806
0
4,899,056
$51,678,862

Summary of Operations and Changes in Net Position
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position presents how the Port’s net
position changed during the current fiscal year as a result of operations. The Port employs an accounting
method that records revenue and expenses when they are incurred, regardless of when cash is exchanged.
Thus, some revenues and expenses reported in this statement may affect future period cash flows.
Revenues:
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Total operating revenues increased by approximately $3.063 million, or 21%, over 2020 revenues. Marina
activity, especially guest boater nights and the rising cost of fuel, Airport fuel sales, and an uptick in Marine
Terminal exports (following the COVID-19 downturn) are the primary drivers of these results.
 Total Airport revenues increased $221,000 over the prior year, due to aviation fuel sales. A more
aggressive pricing strategy, aimed at competing with nearby airports, resulted in a 107% increase
in gallons sold. The loosening of travel restrictions, increased demand for oil and changes in the
political landscape also led to increases in the cost of fuel, which rose an average of $0.53/gallon
or 14% over the prior year.
 As the COVID-19 pandemic persisted throughout 2021, the desire to recreate outdoors through
boating, camping and fishing continued to expand. This, coupled with the rising price of fuel as
described above, resulted in increased Marina revenues of approximately $1.375 million (16.4%)
over the prior year. Fuel sales accounted for roughly $971,000 of this increase, a function of both
volume (gallons sold) and price (per gallon). Moorage revenue was the second largest impact with
the Port recording yet another record-breaking year in 2021. Guest boaters accounted for over
21,600 transient moorage nights, a 26% increase over prior year. Demand for permanent moorage
also grew, as the Port reported a waitlist numbered over 450 customers as of year-end, compared
to about 300 customers as of December 31, 2020.
 Marine Terminal revenues increased $1.389 million or 33.4% over 2020, as bulk product exports
of refinery by-products, petroleum coke and prilled sulfur, showed signs of rebounding. In 2021,
the Port moved 269,000 metric tons of product, as compared to 189,000 the previous year. This
total was still well under the Port’s pre-pandemic five year annual average of 349,000 metric tons.
 Stable occupancy of all long-term ground and property leases, as well as increases in the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) (used to calculate annual lease adjustments) in 2021, contributed to
total Properties revenues increasing $79,000 (5.1%) over the prior year.
Expenses:
 2021 operating expenses increased by $1.869 million or 13.4% over 2020 expenses. Some of this
is the result of expense categories which are commensurate with revenue categories, including:
cost of gasoline and diesel supplying the Marina’s fuel dock, aviation gasoline and Jet A fuel at the
Airport, and longshore/stevedoring expense associated with the movement of bulk product
across the Port’s Pier 2 facility. Other costs are subject to inflationary factors and/or market
pressures, such as; salaries and benefits, utilities, operating supplies, and property and liability
insurance premiums. Of significance, however, in 2021 was the Port’s adjustment to pension
expense as a result of GASB 68 accounting (see Note 6). For the first time since GASB 68 was
implemented by the Port in 2015, PERS Plans 2/3 reported a Net Pension Asset rather than a Net
Pension Liability. This resulted in a $935,000 reduction in pension expense. Absent that
adjustment, operating expenses totaled $16.690 million, an increase of 20% over the prior year,
which is much more consistent with the increase in operating revenues.
Non-Operating (including Environmental Activity):
 Non-operating revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $1.709 million, of which,
$1.656 million was taxes levied. Property tax funds, pursuant Commission Resolution, are used
for property acquisition, industrial development including environmental costs, debt service for
general obligation bonds and public access improvements. Property tax funds are not used to
support general operations. The 2021 tax levy of $1.656 million was approximately $0.21/$1,000
of assessed value, consistent with the levy rate for 2020.
 Non-operating expense for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $264,000, consisting primarily
of interest expense associated with the Port’s two outstanding general obligation bonds (see Note

Page 21



8). The decrease in non-operating expense over the prior year is a result of approximately
$125,000 in bond issuance cost incurred in 2020. No new bonds were issued in 2021.
Long-term monitoring efforts associated with completed sites and investigation/feasibility work
on future cleanup sites, made up the majority of the Port’s 2021 environmental expense. While
no major remediation or cleanup activities were completed which would have driven down the
Port’s remediation liability, rising costs of construction regarding the planned remediation of the
Port’s Former Log Haul Out (“Log Pocket”) site raised the overall estimated liability. As such,
Environmental activities totaled a net loss of $1.577 million for the year ended December 31, 2021
(see Note 12).

The table below summarizes the operations and change in net position for fiscal years ending
December 31:

Airport
Marina
Marine Terminal
Properties
Total Operating Revenues

$

General operations
Facilities
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
NET OPERATING INCOME
Non-operating revenues
Non-operating expenses
Net environmental activities
Total Non-Operating and
Environmental
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL GRANTS
Capital grants
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION – BEGINNING OF PERIOD
NET POSITION – END OF PERIOD

$

2021
722,773
9,776,189
5,547,664
1,633,428
17,680,054

$

2020
502,006
8,401,036
4,158,759
1,554,904
14,616,705

8,792,315
1,775,961
2,665,322
2,519,773
15,753,371

6,375,567
1,872,543
3,311,792
2,324,094
13,883,996

1,926,683

732,709

1,708,870
(264,390)
(1,577,415)
(132,935)

1,743,199
(401,687)
(3,409,551)
(2,068,039)

1,793,748

(1,335,330)

947,995

1,000,000

2,741,743
51,678,862
54,420,605

(335,330)
$

51,678,862

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
The Port’s capital assets include land, facilities (structures/buildings), machinery and equipment, and
construction in progress. The Port’s total net capital assets as of December 31, 2021 totaled $62.758
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million (net of accumulated depreciation). This is a net increase of $4.510 million over the prior year, as a
result of significant completion/progress on a variety of capital improvement initiatives.
In 2021, the Port completed demolition and replacement of A-Dock. Originally constructed in the 1960’s
and serving as the Port’s commercial dock, A-Dock was the last remaining float system in the Marina’s
west basin to be replaced. The new A-Dock is a concrete monolithic floating structure, with an expected
useful life of 40-50 years. It contains finger floats of 60-110 feet in length, provides on-dock utilities
including electrical, water, fire, and sanitary sewer systems and includes an upland pier entrance with
covered shelters for customers waiting to board tour company vessels. This project, which had been in
planning and design since 2014, cost approximately $5.981 million.
Also in 2021, the Port completed piling, corrosion repair and cathodic protection system repair at Pier 1
and Curtis Wharf. These critical projects, totaling approximately $1.706 million, ensure the continued safe
use of two valuable Marine Terminal assets.
Included in construction-in-progress at year-end is tie down apron improvements at the Anacortes
Airport, funded 100% by the FAA. This project, estimated at just under $1 million, was about 90% complete
as of December 31, 2021. Also, well underway at year-end was Q-Dock repairs. O, P & Q Docks, located in
the Marina’s north basin, are the next in line for recapitalization. Repairs to extend the useful life of those
docks while the Port undergoes planning and permitting efforts are in the capital improvement plan for
the next couple of years. Additionally, planning and design on elements of the North and West Basin
Redevelopment project progressed in 2021, with significant efforts made towards RV Park Development
and improvements to the Marina’s J-K-L parking lot. Both are slated for construction in 2022. In total, the
Port reported $2.570 million in construction-in-progress as of December 31, 2021.
Additional information on the Port’s capital assets activity and construction commitments may be found
in Notes 4 and 5 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt (net of current portion) totaled $7.935 million as of December 31, 2021, consisting of
outstanding general obligation bonds, which mature at various dates from 2024-2040. This is a decrease
of $1.245 million over the prior year. No new debt was acquired or issued in 2021, and the Port does not
have any outstanding revenue bonds, lines of credit or other bank financing.
The current portion of long-term debt, including accrued interest payable, totaled $1.355 million as of
year-end.
Additional information on the Port’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Economic Factors and the 2022 Budget
Anacortes, located on Fidalgo Island, is most notably known for the Washington State Ferries system,
servicing the San Juan Islands and British Columbia, Canada. Thus, it is a popular tourist destination for
those visiting the Islands, including recreational boaters. The town has historically been a mecca for
commercial anglers and marine trades, such as yacht building and repair, yacht brokerage firms and whale
watching tours. In the 1950’s, oil companies built two large refineries (currently operated by Marathon
Petroleum Corporation, formerly Andeavor, formerly Tesoro, and HollyFrontier Corporation/HF Sinclair,
formerly Shell Corporations) near town and today, refining remains the largest industry in the area. The
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Port of Anacortes, with one of eight natural deep water marine terminal facilities in Puget Sound, its nearly
1,000 slip marina, its small airport, and its roughly 90 acres of commercial properties, is instrumental to
the success and economic development of the community.
Economic Factors
 The outbreak of the 2019 novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) is a significant event that has had, and
continues to have, a material impact on the global, national, state, and local markets. The Port, in
spite of the pandemic, has managed to maintain its business operations, exceed budgeted net
operating results, and progress with its capital improvement initiatives as originally planned.
While there were some negative financial impacts, especially in 2020, a surge in people seeking
outdoor recreation resulted in record-breaking volumes and revenues at the Port’s Cap Sante
Marina. While most restrictions were lifted and the economy fully reopened in July 2021, the
economy has not fully recovered. Many sectors are experiencing challenges hiring and retaining
employees and meeting customer demands due to supply chain issues. The Port remains
committed to assisting the local community in economic recovery through advancement of all
Port initiatives. The Port continues to attract many qualified candidates for open job positions and
retain key executive and management staff through a healthy culture based on a solid work ethic,
professional development, and work-life balance and flexibility. Furthermore, leveraging
operating revenues, tax dollars, grant opportunities, and debt capacity, the Port continues to
invest in critical infrastructure and assets, to achieve world-class customer service and facilities.


As previously mentioned, oil refining is the largest industry in the area. Two by-products
generated as a result of the refining process, petroleum coke and prilled sulfur, are shipped via
vessel and barge from the Port’s Pier 2 Marine Terminal facility to customers in Canada and the
Asian markets, under multi-year pricing agreements with Shell Puget Sound Refinery and
Chemtrade Sulex, Inc. The current agreement, for the movement of prilled sulfur, with Chemtrade
Sulex is effective through May 31, 2026. In 2021, Shell Puget Sound Refinery was sold to
HollyFrontier Corp., a Dallas, Texas based independent petroleum refiner and marketer.
HollyFrontier announced that it would maintain current and existing operations at the Puget
Sound Refinery, but informed the Port that Shell Trading Company would remain the primary
party utilizing Pier 2 to ship petroleum coke. As such, the current agreement, effective through
December 31, 2023, was assigned from Shell Puget Sound Refinery to Shell Trading Company, and
remains in force. Significant to this agreement is a minimum annual guarantee, which helps secure
the Port’s revenues relative to petroleum coke exports. Despite these agreements, the Port’s
Marine Terminal facility, which also includes Pier 1 and Curtis Wharf, is underutilized. The Port
continues to pursue opportunities to diversify its product mix. Completion of the interim action
upland environmental remediation of the Quiet Cove site, and a recently negotiated right-of-way
use agreement on 2nd Street, from O Ave to the shoreline, with the City of Anacortes, are key
developments towards potential new business at Curtis Wharf.



At the core of the Port’s mission is family wage job creation. To that end, the Port maintains
vibrant land-based businesses by providing improved property rentals, ground leases, and
warehouse space for several large employers, including the Washington State Ferries System,
Dakota Creek Industries, Cortland Company, Transpac Marinas, the Northwest Marine Skills &
Technical Academy, Anthony’s Restaurant, and many other tenants, most of which are secured
under long-term leases. Property acquisitions are paramount to expanding the Port’s operations
and providing opportunities for economic development and growth. In 2019, the Port purchased
a 4+ acre parcel zoned heavy manufacturing, containing warehouse and office buildings. The
property, known as the Bartholomew Property, attracted Redmond, WA-based Rainier Welding,
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a growing steel and aluminum fabrication company. In 2021, the Port and Rainier negotiated a
10-year lease agreement comprising 32,500 square feet of office, industrial and laydown space,
initially bringing 40 jobs and $20 million in annual work. Rainier is already expanding its footprint,
encouraging the Port to continue pursuing industrial land acquisitions and developments which
accomplish the highest and best use of its properties.


The Port continues to manage its environmental remediation obligations via grant funds in
cooperation with the Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE). To date, clean-ups have
occurred and are significantly completed at the Cap Santé Marine site, the in-water portion of
Dakota Creek Shipyard (DCI), the former Scott Paper Mill Site, the former Shell Tank Farm site,
and pursuant an interim action, the uplands portion of the Quiet Cove site. 2022 will bring postconstruction monitoring at the completed sites and continued planning and testing for
remediation efforts at the Former Pier 2 Log Haul Out site (also known as “Log Pocket”) and the
in-water portion of the Quiet Cove site. Additionally, the Port anticipates completion of clean-up
activities of the uplands portion of the DCI site. Critical to the ongoing success of the
environmental program is the funding of clean-up activities by the Model Toxics Control Act
(MTCA), which is funded through several different mechanisms, including a tax assessed on
hazardous materials. DOE recognizes the Port’s success executing its environmental remediation
program, and despite limiting resources, continues to provide the Port with necessary awards to
advance Port projects each biennium. The Port has approximately $4.5 million in grant awards,
guaranteed through June 30, 2023. MTCA funding remains a legislative priority for the Port.

2022 Budget
The 2022 budget reflects total operating revenues of $16.929 million. This is an increase of approximately
12% from the 2021 adopted budget, but a decrease of 4.2% from 2021 actual results. The 2022 budget
was prepared in the fall and adopted in November of 2021. While demand for outdoor recreation had
increased, export volumes remained depressed. The 2022 revenue projections assumed the trends of
2021 would continue, however, the Port was not aggressive with Marine Terminal volumes or the
Marina’s ability to maintain the pace of rapid growth. These conservative estimates were based in large
part on uncertainty around the COVID-19 pandemic and its effects on the regional and local economy.
In terms of expenses, the 2022 budget projects operations spending (including depreciation) of $16.715
million, a 6.1% increase from 2021 actual. The Port remains committed to process improvement and
providing safe, productive facilities with excellent internal and external customer service. The 2022
budget includes additional customer service staff in response to record-breaking activity at the Marina
and an information technology assistant to support 7 day a week, 18-hour per day operations. The Port
also anticipates various challenges contributing to increased expenses including, rising inflation, supply
chain issues, insurance premium pressure, and increasing demands on the Port’s infrastructure.
The Commission again levied property taxes at the maximum allowable in 2022 to give the Port the ability
to remain nimble as opportunities arise and provide funds for projects that meet the Commission’s intent
for use of tax funds. Recent property acquisitions and environmental remediation efforts provide
opportunities for increased property lease and marine terminal business. This, along with sufficient debt
capacity, is contributing to positive future cash flow projections and an aggressive five-year capital
improvement plan that contemplates over $42 million in projects across all operating areas at the Port.
The 2022 capital budget, in particular, totals $11.017 million, primarily focused on infrastructure
maintenance across all operating areas, along with new redevelopment opportunities within the Marina
and newly acquired properties.
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Requests for Information
The Port of Anacortes designed this financial report to provide our citizens, customers, investors and
creditors with an overview of the Port’s finances. If you have questions or need additional financial
information, please visit our website at www.portofanacortes.com or contact Jill Brownfield, Director of
Finance and Administration, 100 Commercial Ave, Anacortes, WA 98221 or via phone at 360-293-3134.
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PORT OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2021
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1)

$

Other Current Assets
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectible)
Interest receivable
Due from others
Fuel inventory
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of environmental remediation
Total Other Current Assets

24,930
568,683
1,090
735,825
84,992
449,465
117,962
1,982,947

Total Current Assets

16,380,481

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated (Note 4)
Land
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

22,576,946
2,570,411
25,147,357

Capital Assets Being Depreciated (Note 4)
Facilities
Equipment
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Accumulated depreciation
Total Net Capital Assets

80,475,350
5,012,324
85,487,674
(47,876,791)
62,758,240

Other Noncurrent Assets
Net pension asset (Note 6)
Environmental remediation (Note 12)
Total Other Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred outflows – pensions (Note 6)
Deferred outflows – asset retirement obligation (Note 13)
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

14,397,534

2,496,280
164,781
2,661,061
$

81,799,782

$

66,898
331,508
256,756
655,162

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PORT OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2021
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Warrants payable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned income
Interest payable
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8)
Current portion of environmental remediation (Note 12)

$

Total Current Liabilities

6,696,388

Noncurrent Liabilities
General obligation bonds (Note 8)
Net pension liability (Note 6)
Asset retirement obligation (Note 13)
Environmental remediation (Note 12)

7,935,000
237,835
493,409
9,080,297

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Bond premiums
Deferred inflows – pensions (Note 6)
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

17,746,541
$

24,442,929

$

1,029,019
2,562,391
3,591,410

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

550,498
1,713,718
733,463
214,703
110,285
1,245,000
2,128,721

52,616,119
470,290
1,334,196
$

54,420,605

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PORT OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
OPERATING REVENUES)
Airport
Marina
Marine Terminal
Properties
Total Operating Revenues

$

722,773
9,776,189
5,547,664
1,633,428
17,680,054

OPERATING EXPENSES
General operations
Facilities
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
NET OPERATING INCOME

8,792,315
1,775,961
2,665,322
2,519,773
15,753,371
$

1,926,683

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Taxes levied
Investment income
Miscellaneous taxes
Gain on disposal of assets
Other income
Total Non-Operating Revenues

1,656,375
23,119
24,168
2,235
2,973
1,708,870

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Interest expense
Election expense
Total Non-Operating Expenses

(251,128)
(13,262)
(264,390)

ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITY
Environmental recoveries
Environmental remediation expense
Environmental remediation costs previously accrued
Total Environmental Activity

412,204
(491,932)
(1,497,687)
(1,577,415)

NET INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL GRANTS

$

Capital grants
INCREASE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION – BEGINNING OF PERIOD
NET POSITION – END OF PERIOD

1,793,748
947,995

$

2,741,743
51,678,862
54,420,605

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PORT OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Operating grants received
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments for environmental expenses
Receipts from environmental recoveries
Net cash provided by other non-operating income
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

(531,850)
1,756,493
29,376
1,254,019

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on general obligation bonds
Interest paid on general obligation bonds
Purchases of capital assets
Cash received from property taxes
Cash received from capital grants and due from other agencies
Net cash (used) by capital and related financing activities

(1,205,000)
(366,923)
(6,832,093)
1,648,365
1,636,370
(5,119,281)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net interest earned on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

18,123,645
(11,283,529)
(4,516,178)
161,896
2,485,834

24,230
24,230
$

(1,355,198)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year
End of year
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

$

15,752,732
14,397,534
(1,355,198)

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Net operating income

$

1,926,683

Adjustments to reconcile net operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
2,519,773
Asset retirement amortization
15,103
Non-cash GASB 68 pension income
(934,357)
Decrease in accounts receivable
605,487
Increase in inventory and prepaid expenses
(166,012)
Decrease in accounts payable & other current liabilities
(1,480,843)
Total adjustments
559,151
Net cash provided by operating activities
$
2,485,834
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PORT OF ANACORTES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Port of Anacortes was incorporated in 1926 and operates under the laws of the state of Washington
applicable to a public port district as a municipal corporation under the provisions of Chapter 53 of the
Revised Code of Washington (RCW). The financial statements of the Port of Anacortes have been prepared
in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
A. Reporting Entity
The Port of Anacortes (the Port) is a special purpose municipal government providing marine
terminal, marina and aviation services fostering economic activity within the district. The Port is
supported primarily through user charges, property leases, tariffs, and fees.
The Port is independent from other local or state governments and operates within district
boundaries which include the northwest corner of Skagit County. It is administered by a fivemember Board of Commissioners (the Commission), each of whom is elected to a four-year term.
The Commission delegates authority to an Executive Director and administrative staff who
conduct the operations of the Port. Skagit County levies and collects taxes and issues warrants for
payment of expenditures on the Port’s behalf.
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, management has considered all
potential component units in defining the reporting entity. The component unit discussed below
is included in the district’s reporting entity.
The Industrial Development Corporation of the Port of Anacortes (the IDC), a public corporation
established by the Commission in 1982, is authorized to facilitate the issuance of tax-exempt nonrecourse revenue bonds to finance industrial development within the corporate boundaries of
the Port. The IDC may construct and maintain industrial facilities, which it leases, or sells to
industrial users. Revenue bonds issued by the IDC are payable from revenues derived as a result
of the industrial development facilities funded by the revenue bonds. The bonds are not a liability
or contingent liability of the Port or a lien on any of its properties or revenues other than industrial
facilities for which they are issued.
The Commission governs the IDC. The IDC’s account balances and transactions are included as a
blended unit within the Port’s financial statements and there were no tax-exempt non-recourse
revenue bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2021.
B. Basis of Accounting and Reporting
The accounting records of the Port are maintained in accordance with methods prescribed by the
Washington State Auditor under the authority of Chapter 43.09 RCW. The Port uses the
Budgeting, Accounting, and Reporting System for GAAP in the State of Washington. Funds are
accounted for on a cost of services or economic resources measurement focus. This means that
all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are
included on their statements of net position (or balance sheets). Their reported fund position is
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued
segregated into net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted components of net
position. Operating statements present increases (revenues and gains) and decreases (expenses
and losses) in net position. The Port discloses changes in cash flows by a separate statement that
presents their operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing and investing
activities.
The Port uses the full-accrual basis of accounting, where revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred. Capital asset purchases are capitalized and longterm liabilities are reported on the Statement of Net Position.
The Port distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses from non-operating ones.
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and facilities in connection with
the Port’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Port are facility
use charges to customers for marine terminals, the marina, and the airport, as well as industrial
and commercial property leases. Operating expenses are expenses for the benefit of customers
and include the cost of labor, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
C. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the Port’s financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents
It is the Port’s policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. At December 31, 2021, cash
on hand and short-term residual investments of surplus cash were $14,397,534. This
amount is classified on the Statement of Net Position as cash and cash equivalents.
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Port considers short-term, highly liquid
investments, with maturity of three months or less from the purchase date to be cash
equivalents.
2. Investments – See Note 2, Deposits and Investments
3. Receivables
Taxes receivable consist of property taxes and related interest and penalties (See Note 3,
Property Taxes). Interest receivable consists of amounts earned on investments at the
end of the year. Accounts receivable consist of amounts owed from private individuals or
organizations for goods and services including amounts owed for which billings have not
been prepared.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued
Receivables have been recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. Because
property taxes and special assessments are considered liens on property, no estimated
uncollectible amounts are established for these items. Allowance for uncollectible
amounts consists of the estimated amounts of customer accounts, notes and contracts
that will never be collected. Estimated uncollectible amounts for trade receivables are
$15,982 as of December 31, 2021.
4. Due from Others
This account includes amounts owed from governmental grants and other settlements.
5. Fuel Inventory
Reported fuel inventory is non-ethanol gasoline, diesel fuel, aviation gasoline, and jet fuel
held at the Port’s marina fuel dock and airport fuel island as of December 31, 2021.
Inventory has been valued based on the First In First Out (FIFO) method of accounting,
which approximates fair market value.
6. Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid in advance for items of future benefit. The
amount reported on the Statement of Net Position primarily consists of prepaid insurance
for the Port’s property and general liability coverage.
7. Capital Assets and Depreciation – See Note 4, Capital Assets and Depreciation
8. Compensated Absences
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, the
Port accrues a liability for compensated absences.
Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to a 24-month accrual, is payable upon
separation of employment or death. Sick leave may accumulate up to 960 hours. Upon
separation without cause and a minimum of ten years of service, employees are paid for
accumulated sick leave at 50% of their final balance, but not more than 480 hours. At
December 31, 2021, the recorded liability for unpaid vacation and sick leave was $317,049
and is included in the Statement of Net Position under Accrued Liabilities.
9. Unearned Income
At December 31, 2021, the Port held $214,703 in Unearned Income. This amount
represents prepayment of rent and will be recognized as revenue in 2022.
10. Long-Term Debt – See Note 8, Long-Term Debt
11. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, net pension asset, deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of all state sponsored pension plans and
additions to/deductions from those plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the Washington State Department of
Retirement Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – continued
For purposes of calculating the restricted net position related to the net pension asset,
the Port includes the net pension asset and the related deferred outflows and inflows.
12. Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, the Port reports separate
sections for these items on the Statement of Net Position. Deferred outflows represent a
consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s); conversely, deferred inflows
represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s). As of December
31, 2021, the Port recorded deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources of $655,162 and $3,591,410, respectively.
NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
A. Treasury Function
At the direction of the Port Auditor, the Skagit County Treasurer is responsible for execution and
administration of the Port’s deposit and investment accounts, based on the Port’s management
and investment decisions. A Commission resolution provides general guidance and policy
direction for all investments of Port funds. This resolution, in combination with state statutes and
the Treasurer’s investment policy, serves as the template for the investment of all Port funds.
B. Deposits
The Port has established direct banking services with Banner Bank. The Port also maintains
deposits in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) managed by the Washington State
Treasurer. The Port’s bank deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by the Federal
Depository Insurance Commission (FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution
collateral pool administered by the Washington State Public Deposit Protection Commission
(PDPC). The Port has not experienced any losses in its deposit accounts. All bank deposits as well
as deposits in the LGIP are considered to be cash equivalents and are reported at cost.
C. Investments
It is the Port’s policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. The Port is a voluntary participant in
the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), an external investment pool operated by the
Washington State Treasurer. The pool is not rated and not registered with the SEC. Rather,
oversight is provided by the State Finance committee in accordance with RCW 43.250.
Investments in the LGIP are reported at amortized cost, which is the same as the value of the pool
per share. The LGIP does not impose any restrictions on participant withdrawals. The Office of the
State Treasurer prepares a stand-alone financial report for the pool. A copy of the report is
available from the Office of the State Treasurer, PO Box 40200, Olympia, Washington 98504-0200,
online at www.tre.wa.gov.

Page 34

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – continued
As of December 31, 2021, the Port had the following investments measured at amortized cost:

Investment Type

Maturities

Amortized Cost
Investments
Held by Port
Port’s Own as Agent for
Investment Others

Local Government Investment Pool

Less than 1 year

$11,026,027

Money Market Funds

Less than 1 year

2,347,401

Total

$13,373,428

$
$

Total

-

$11,026,027

-

2,347,401

-

$13,373,428

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY TAXES
The Skagit County Treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the county for all taxing
authorities.
Property Tax Calendar:
January 1 ............... Taxes are levied and become an enforceable lien against properties
February 14 ........... Tax bills are mailed
April 30 .................. First of two equal installment payments is due
May 31 .................. Assessed value of property established for next year’s levy at 100% of market
value
October 31 ............. Second installment is due
Property taxes are recorded as a receivable and revenue when levied. No allowance for uncollectible taxes
is established because delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible. (State law allows for the sale of
property for failure to pay taxes.) Prior year tax levies were recorded using the same principal, and
delinquent taxes are evaluated annually.
The Port may levy up to $0.45 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental services. The
Washington State Constitution and Washington State Law, RCW 84.55.010, limit the rate. The Port may
also levy taxes at a lower rate.
The Port’s regular levy for 2021 was $0.2082 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation of $7,952,520,928 for a
total regular levy of $1,656,375. For 2021, the Port collected 99.26% of ad valorem taxes levied.
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
A. Major expenditures (defined by the Port as those in excess of $5,000) for capital assets and
major repairs that increase useful lives are capitalized. Maintenance, repairs, and minor
renewals are accounted for as expenses when incurred. All capital assets are valued at
historical cost (or estimated historical cost, where historical cost is not known/or estimated
market value for donated assets).
The Port has acquired certain assets with funding provided by federal and state financial
assistance programs. Depending on the terms of the agreements involved, the government
could retain an equity interest in these assets. However, the Port has sufficient legal interest
to accomplish the purposes for which the assets were acquired and has included such assets
within the applicable account.
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION – continued
Depreciation expense is charged to operations to allocate the cost of capital assets over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. Buildings and improvements are
assigned lives of 20 to 50 years; equipment 5 to 10 years; and software and furniture and
fixtures 3 to 7 years.
B. Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2021 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
12/31/2020
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Facilities
Machinery and Equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities
Machinery and Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: $

Increases

Ending
Balance
12/31/2021

Decreases

22,576,946
3,578,896
26,155,842

7,249,267
7,249,267

(8,257,752)
(8,257,752)

22,576,946
2,570,411
25,147,357

72,502,067
4,987,532
77,489,599

7,973,283
65,422
8,038,705

(40,630)
(40,630)

80,475,350
5,012,324
85,487,674

41,565,438
3,832,210
45,397,648
32,091,951

2,323,415
196,358
2,519,773
$5,518,932

43,888,855
(40,630)
3,987,936
(40,630)
47,876,791
$$ 37,610,883

NOTE 5 – CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS
The Port has active construction projects as of December 31, 2021. At year-end, the Port’s commitments
with contractors and consultants on these active construction projects are as follows:

PROJECT
Curtis Wharf Steel Piling Cathodic Protection
– Phase D

CONTRACT
AMOUNT
$

O-P-Q-Dock Repair
North Apron Tiedown Improvements
B-Dock Electrical Upgrades
Totals $

321,544

REMAINING
COMMITMENT

SPENT TO DATE
$

58,221

$

263,323

1,154,280

330,560

823,720

78,229

67,121

11,108

922,742

75,691

847,051

2,476,795

$

531,593

$

1,945,202

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS
The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans for the year 2021:
Aggregate Pension Amounts – All Plans
Pension liabilities
$
(237,835)
Pension assets
$
2,496,280
Deferred outflows of resources
$
331,508
Deferred inflows of resources
$
(2,562,391)
Pension expense/expenditures
$
(583,537)
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NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS – continued
State Sponsored Pension Plans
Substantially all of the Port’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems, under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined
contribution retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to the
creation and administration of all public retirement systems.
The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State
of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be
obtained by writing to:
Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit
P.O. Box 48380
Olympia, WA 98540-8380
Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)
PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals and
Superior Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of district and municipal courts; employees of
local governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher education retirement
programs. PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes. PERS plans 1
and 2 are defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution
component.
PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service. The
AFC is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive service months. Members are eligible for
retirement from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years
of service, or at age 60 with at least five years of service. Members retiring from active status prior to the
age of 65 may receive actuarially reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect
the choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional
cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the
Department of Labor and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five years of
eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.
Contributions
The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The employer
contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense
component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts
Plan 1 employer contribution rates.
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NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS – continued
The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2021 were
as follows:
PERS Plan 1
Actual Contribution Rates:
January – June 2021:
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Total
July – December 2021:
PERS Plan 1
Administrative Fee
Total

Employer

Employee*

7.92%
4.87%
0.18%
12.97%

6.00%

10.07%
0.18%
10.25%

6.00%
6.00%
6.00%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 12.26%.
PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service for
Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest-paid
consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for
retirement with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is
considered an early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and
are 55 years of age or older, are eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that
varies according to age for each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years
of service credit and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:


With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or



With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter
return-to-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a
reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those
who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits
are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits
include duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at
three percent annually and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of
Labor and Industries. PERS 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3
members are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five
years of service if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44.
PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and
investment earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon
joining membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As established by
statute, Plan 3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and escalate to 15
percent with a choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits.
PERS Plan 3 members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.
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NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS – continued
Contributions
The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer rates include
a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that is currently set at 0.18
percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and employee
contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution rates (expressed
as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2021 were as follows:
PERS Plan 2/3
Actual Contribution Rates:
January – June 2021:
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total
July – December 2021:
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total

Employer

Employee*

7.92%
4.87%
0.18%

7.90%

12.97%

Varies
7.90%

6.36%
3.71%
0.18%
10.25%

6.36%

Varies
6.36%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 15.90%.
The Port’s actual PERS plan contributions were $132,002 to PERS Plan 1 and $218,817 to PERS Plan 2/3
for the year ended December 31, 2021.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent actuarial
valuation completed in 2021 with a valuation date of June 30, 2020. The actuarial assumptions used in
the valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s (OSA) 2013-2018 Experience
Study and the 2019 Economic Experience Study.
Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2020 actuarial
valuation report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement
date of June 30, 2021. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2020, to June 30, 2021, reflecting
each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual benefit payments.


Inflation: 2.75% total economic inflation; 3.50% salary inflation



Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also
expected to grow by promotions and longevity.



Investment rate of return: 7.4%
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NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS – continued
Mortality rates were developed using the Society of Actuaries’ Pub. H-2010 mortality rates, which vary by
member status, as the base table. The OSA applied age offsets for each system, as appropriate, to better
tailor the mortality rates to the demographics of each plan. OSA applied the long-term MP-2017
generational improvement scale, also developed by the Society Actuaries, to project mortality rates for
every year after the 2010 base table. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each
member is assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year throughout their
lifetime.
There were no changes in assumptions since the last valuation. There were changes in methods since the
last valuation.


For purposes of the June 30, 2020 Actuarial Valuation Report (AVR), a non-contribution rate
setting valuation under current funding policy, the Office of the State Actuary (OSA) introduced
temporary method changes to produce asset and liability measures as of the valuation date. See
high-level summary below. OSA will revert back to the methods outlined in the 2019 AVR when
preparing the 2021 AVR, a contribution rate-setting valuation, which will serve as the basis for
2022 ACFR results.



To produce measures at June 30, 2020, unless otherwise noted in the 2020 AVR, OSA relied on
the same data, assets, methods, and assumptions as the June 30, 2019 AVR. OSA projected the
data forward one year reflecting assumed new hires and current members exiting the plan as
expected. OSA estimated June 30, 2020, assets by relying on the fiscal year end 2019 assets,
reflecting actual investment performance over FY 2020, and reflecting assumed contribution
amounts and benefit payments during FY 2020. OSA reviewed the actual June 30, 2020,
participant and financial data to determine if any material changes to projection assumptions
were necessary. OSA also considered any material impacts to the plans from 2021 legislation. See
the 2020 AVR for more information.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.4 percent.
To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether each pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan
members. Based on OSA’s assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the longterm expected rate of return of 7.4 percent was used to determine the total liability.
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.4 percent was
determined using a building-block-method. In selecting this assumption, the OSA reviewed the historical
experience data, considered the historical conditions that produced past annual investment returns, and
considered Capital Market Assumptions (CMA’s) and simulated expected investment returns provided by
the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The WSIB uses the CMA’s and their target asset
allocation to simulate future investment returns at various future times.
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NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS – continued
Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component
used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad
economic inflation.

Asset Class
Fixed Income
Tangible Assets
Real Estate
Global Equity
Private Equity

Target Allocation
20%
7%
18%
32%
23%
100%

% Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
Arithmetic
2.20%
5.10%
5.80%
6.30%
9.30%

Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability/(Asset)
The table below presents the Port’s proportionate share of the net pension liability or (asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 7.4 percent, as well as what the Port’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability or (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.4
percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8.4 percent) than the current rate.

PERS 1
PERS 2/3

1% Decrease
(6.4%)
$
405,166
$
(711,142)

Current Discount
Rate
(7.4%)
$
237,835
$
(2,496,280)

1% Increase
(8.4%)
$
91,906
$
(3,966,342)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued DRS financial report.
Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2021, the Port reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities or (assets) as
follows:
Liability or (Asset)
$
237,835
$
(2,496,280)

PERS 1
PERS 2/3

At June 30, the Port’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as follows:

PERS 1
PERS 2/3

Proportionate
Share 6/30/20
0.019048%
0.024685%

Proportionate
Share 6/30/21
0.019475%
0.025059%

Change in
Proportion
0.000427%
0.000374%
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NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS – continued
Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021 are used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension
amounts reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations for all plans
except LEOFF 1.
Pension Expense
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Port recognized pension expense as follows:

PERS 1
PERS 2/3

Pension Expense
$
(29,423)
$
(554,114)

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
At December 31, 2021, the Port reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
PERS Plan 1
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date
TOTAL
PERS Plan 2/3
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date
TOTAL

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$
-

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$
-

$

-

$

$
$

-

$
$

-

-

$

59,028

$

$

59,028

$

(263,918)

(263,918)

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$
121,237

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$
(30,601)

$

-

$

(2,086,304)

$
$

3,648
47,456

$
$

(177,277)
(4,291)

$

100,139

$

$

272,480

$

(2,298,473)

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS – continued
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Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Port’s contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
December 31, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ended
December 31:
2022
2023
2024
2025
TOTAL

$
$
$
$
$

PERS Plan 1
(69,912)
(64,065)
(60,576)
(69,365)
(263,918)

Year ended
December 31:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter
TOTAL

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

PERS Plan 2/3
(558,552)
(521,068)
(501,631)
(542,570)
(4,780)
2,469
(2,126,132)

NOTE 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT
The Port is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: damage to, theft of and destruction of assets;
natural disasters and pandemics; security breaches; and employee injuries. To limit exposure, the Port
purchases property, liability and related insurance coverage annually through a commercial insurance
broker which is tailored for the risk management needs of public port authorities and provides coverage
against most normal hazards. In comparison to prior years, there were no significant changes in the type
of coverage and insurance policies purchased by the Port in 2021. Settlement claims have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.
The Port participates in the State of Washington Labor and Industries workman’s compensation program.
However, management has elected to become self-insured through the Washington State Employment
Security Department on a reimbursement basis. Unemployment claims are processed by the Washington
State Employment Security Department. No reserve for self-insurance has been established as the
potential liability is not considered to be material to the financial statements.
The Port provides medical, vision, dental, life, and long-term disability coverage for full-time employees,
commissioners, and their eligible dependents through standard plans. The Port does not administer any
of these plans, and only the dental plan is self-insured. The 2021 dental plan had an average of 127 lives
on the plan. A monthly administrative fee per employee is charged, along with actual claims. Fixed costs
were $4,535, and the claims paid were $39,917. Total dental costs were $44,452 in 2021.
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NOTE 7 - RISK MANAGEMENT – continued
Effective January 1, 2022, the Port discontinued its self-insured dental plan and reverted to a standard
plan administered by MetLife. The discontinued self-insured plan contains a 24-month closeout period for
claims processing. The Port has determined that the previously required eight weeks of self-insured dental
reserve of $7,372 is sufficient for the closeout period and has included this amount in the Port’s Accrued
Liabilities on the Statement of Net Position.
NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT
A. Long-Term Debt
The Port issues general obligation bonds to finance the acquisition or construction of capital
assets. Bonded indebtedness has also been entered into in 2012 and 2020 to advance refund
several general obligation and revenue bonds. General obligation bonds have been issued for
both general government and business-type activities and are being repaid from the applicable
resources.
Bonds are displayed net of premium or discount on the Statement of Net Position. Annual interest
expense is decreased by amortization of debt premium and increased by the amortization of debt
discount and deferred amounts on refunding, if applicable.
B. General Obligation Bonds
The general obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:
Issue Name and Purpose
Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, 2012
Purpose: Refunding
Limited Tax General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, 2020
Purpose: Construction and Refunding
Total General Obligation Bonds

Original
Issue

Coupon
Rate

Last Date
of Maturity

Amount
Outstanding

5,075,000

2.75% - 4.00%

2024

1,680,000

8,185,000

3.00% - 4.00%

2040

7,500,000
9,180,000

$

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2040
Total $

Principal
1,245,000
1,300,000
1,340,000
250,000
5,045,000

Interest
314,250
263,717
211,183
172,117
1,290,300

9,180,000 $ 2,251,567
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NOTE 9 – CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
During the year ended December 31, 2021, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:
Beginning
Balance
12/31/2020

Additions

Reductions

Ending
Balance
12/31/2021

Due
Within
One Year

G.O. bonds payable

$ 10,385,000

$ (1,205,000)

$ 9,180,000

Net pension liability

988,204

$ (750,369)

237,835

-

Asset retirement
obligation

467,686

25,723

-

493,409

-

9,730,885

1,478,133

-

11,209,018

2,128,721

$ 21,571,775

$1,503,856

$ 21,120,262

$ 3,373,721

Environmental
remediation
Total long-term
liabilities

$(1,955,369)

$ 1,245,000

NOTE 10 - LEASES
The Port is committed under a lease agreement for the lease of several pieces of office equipment. The
lease is considered to be an operating lease for accounting purposes. Total cost for the lease was $18,932
for the year ended December 31, 2021.
The lease expires March 2027. Future minimum lease payment are as follows:
Year ended
December 31:
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
TOTAL

Lease Payments
$
17,297
17,297
17,297
17,297
17,297
4,324
$
90,809

NOTE 11 - RESTRICTED COMPONENT OF NET POSITION
Net Position is segregated into three components: invested in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.
Items are categorized as restricted when constraints are externally imposed on their use by contract or
agreement, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
As of December 31, 2021, the Port’s net position included a restricted component of $470,290, which is
related to the net pension asset for the PERS Plan 2/3 retirement program (see Note 6 – Pension Plans).
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NOTE 12 - POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS
The Port has identified six contaminated sites on various Port properties that require investigation, and
potential remediation, in order to comply with state environmental laws and regulations. As of December
31, 2021, remediation activities at three of these sites is substantially complete. Although the Port may
not bear ultimate liability for the contamination at the remaining sites, the Port is presumptively liable as
the property owner.
The Port’s estimate of its pollution remediation obligations is analyzed by independent environmental
consultants annually (using the expected cash flow technique) and has been estimated at $14,327,584 as
of December 31, 2021. The Port’s historical insurance policy provides unlimited defense and indemnity
coverage of $3.5 million, of which $3,118,566 remains. This policy constitutes an unrealizable recovery,
which reduces the liability as presented in current and long-term liabilities, totaling $11,209,018. The Port
has and will continue to actively pursue cost sharing and cost recovery agreements with current and
former tenants, former site operators, the Port’s former insurance carriers, the tenants’ former insurance
carriers and granting agencies. The Port has been extremely successful in negotiating these agreements
on the completed sites, and in partnership with the other liable parties and the Washington State
Department of Ecology (DOE), has expended minimal out of pocket costs relative to total remediation
expenses. As of December 31, 2021, the Port has estimated realizable recoveries from these agreements
(not including DOE grant funds) totaling $282,743. The Port estimates $7,086,766 in future expected
recoveries that are not yet included on the Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2021. These
amounts consist of estimated future grant reimbursements expected from DOE, and will be recognized as
a receivable as the work is performed.
The Port liability will change over time due to changes in cost estimates, changes in technology, and
changes in governing laws and regulations. In 2021, the Port recognized an increase in the accrued net
liability in the amount of $1,497,687, as a result of current economic conditions indicating rising
construction costs. During the fiscal year 2021, the Port recorded recoveries in the amount of $412,204,
and expended $491,932 in cleanup activities.
NOTE 13 – ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION
The Port owns and operates two fuel facilities, a fuel island at its airport and a fuel dock at its marina. The
fuel dispensers at the airport fuel island are supplied by two 12,000 gallon, double-walled, dielectriccoated, underground storage tanks that were installed in 1991. The marina fuel dock is supplied by two
15,000 gallon, double-walled, fiberglass underground storage tanks that were installed in 2008. The
Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE) monitors and regulates underground storage tanks,
including requirements for permanent closure, pursuant Washington Administrative Code (WAC) Chapter
173-360A.
Using DOE’s permanent closure requirements, internal project management staff prepared the Port’s
initial estimate of its underground storage tank retirement obligation, utilizing the expected cash flow
technique for a series of associated tasks. Key assumptions were no soil contamination, complete site
surface pavement restoration, and decommissioning by demolition and disposal. In addition to
construction costs, permitting, design and engineering, construction oversight and project administration,
and a 10% construction contingency were considered.
As of December 31, 2021, the asset retirement obligation for the Port’s four underground storage tanks
was $493,409, an increase of six percent over 2020 to reflect the effects of inflation on the Port’s initial
estimate.
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NOTE 13 – ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION– continued
Underground storage tanks typically have estimated useful lives ranging from 30-40 years. The Port’s
airport fuel tanks were installed in 1991, but underwent significant cathodic protection repairs in 2019.
The Port estimates this work extended the useful lives of those tanks 20 years. The marina fuel tanks were
installed in 2008, and given an estimated useful life at acquisition, of 30 years.
Upon retirement of the underground storage tanks, the Port will fund the decommissioning out of current
reserves. There are no assets restricted for the payment of this liability.
NOTE 14 – CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATION
The Port has recorded in its financial statements all material liabilities, including an estimate for situations,
which are not yet resolved, but where, based on available information, management believes it is
probable that the Port will have to make payment. In the opinion of management, the Port’s insurance
policies are adequate to pay all known or pending claims.
As discussed in Note 8 – Long-Term Debt, the Port is contingently liable for repayment of refunded debt.
The Port participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs. These grants are subject to audit
by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement to grantor
agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management believes that such
disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.
NOTE 15 – JOINT VENTURES
The Port participates in a single joint venture with Skagit County and other local governments in the Skagit
Council of Governments (SCOG), a regional transportation-planning agency formed in 1967. The purpose
of SCOG is to provide staff support for regional transportation planning and economic development
activities in Skagit County.
A Board of Directors, composed of elected officials representing the cities of: Anacortes, Burlington,
Mount Vernon, and Sedro Woolley; the towns of: Concrete, Hamilton, LaConner, and Lyman; Skagit
County, Skagit County Public Utility District, the Port of Anacortes, the Port of Skagit County, Skagit Transit,
Swinomish Tribal Community and the Samish Indian Nation, governs SCOG. Annual dues are assessed
according to a per capita ratio or through an equitable assessment established by the Board of Directors.
In 2021, the Port was assessed annual dues of $10,221.
Pursuant the SCOG Governance Agreement, approved by the Board of Directors in May 2014, SCOG shall
have perpetual existence, until dissolved by 1) a vote of 2/3 of the voting members, or 2) withdrawal of
such members so that the ratification thresholds as required by State or Federal law are no longer met.
Upon dissolution, the debts, liabilities, and obligations shall be paid from SCOG’s assets. The remaining
net assets shall be distributed to member agencies in proportion to their respective contributions to
SCOG.
The Port’s net investment in SCOG as of December 31, 2021 has not been communicated. Furthermore,
based on the SCOG’s most recent audited financial statements available on the State Auditor’s website,
the Port believes the investment to be immaterial to the financial statements.
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NOTE 16 – COVID-19
In February 2020, the Governor of the state of Washington declared a state of emergency in response to
the spread of COVID-19. Precautionary measures to slow the spread of the virus continued throughout
2021. These measures included limitations on business operations, public events, gatherings, travel, and
in-person interactions.
The Port proactively implemented safety measures, and operations have continued with remote work
options in place for administrative staff and others whose positions allow. The Port has maintained service
levels to our customers and tenants and Port facilities, including the marine terminals, Anacortes Airport,
Marina fuel island and trailer boat launch, have remained fully operational. Despite experiencing direct
expenses associated with the response to COVID-19 and some negative impact to individual revenue
streams, the Port was able to exceed budgeted operating results in both 2020 and 2021, and progress
with its capital improvement initiatives as originally planned. Management continues to monitor the
situation for any operational or financial effects and is ready to respond appropriately as needed.
The length of time these measures will continue to be in place, and the full extent of the financial impact
on the Port is unknown at this time.
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44.63%

57.03%

45.64%

59.10%

61.24%

37.67%

$2,291,088

$863,035

0.018188%

2017

63.22%

33.55%

$2,411,395

$808,977

0.018114%

2018

67.12%

27.37%

$2,677,419

$732,771

0.019056%

2019

68.64%

23.35%

$2,880,652

$672,497

0.019048%

2020

88.74%

7.94%

$2,997,121

$237,835

0.019475%

2021

Notes to Schedule:
*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

$2,114,171

$943,484

0.017568%

2016

$1,884,289

$859,965

Employer’s
proportionate share of
the net pension liability

Employer’s covered
employee payroll
Employer’s
proportionate share of
the net pension liability
as a percentage of
covered employee
payroll
Plan fiduciary net
position as a percentage
of the total pension
liability

0.016440%

Employer’s proportion of
the net pension liability

2015

Port of Anacortes
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees’ Retirement System Plan 1
As of June 30,
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
2022

2023

2024

The Port of Anacortes is presenting Required Supplementary Information (RSI) to meet the minimum financial reporting requirements and is an integral part of
the accompanying financial statements. RSI generally includes schedules, statistical data, and other information.
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$2,114,171

53.55%

85.82%

40.27%

89.20%

$1,132,203

$758,739

$1,884,289

0.022487%

0.021235%

2016

90.97%

35.47%

$2,291,088

$812,691

0.023390%

2017

95.77%

16.40%

$2,411,395

$395,368

0.023156%

2018

97.77%

8.93%

$2,677,419

$239,202

0.024626%

2019

97.22%

10.96%

$2,880,652

$315,707

0.024685%

2020

120.29%

-83.29%

$2,997,121

$(2,496,280)

0.025059%

2021

Notes to Schedule:
*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Employer’s covered
employee payroll
Employer’s
proportionate share of
the net pension liability
as a percentage of
covered employee
payroll
Plan fiduciary net
position as a
percentage of the total
pension liability

Employer’s proportion
of the net pension
liability (asset)
Employer’s
proportionate share of
the net pension liability
(asset)

2015

Port of Anacortes
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Public Employees’ Retirement System Plan 2/3
As of June 30,
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
2022

2023

2024
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4.33%

$1,940,212

4.77%

$2,216,729

-

$(105,734)

$105,734

2016

4.89%

$2,372,021

-

$(115,883)

$115,883

2017

5.06%

$2,537,780

-

$(128,496)

$128,496

2018

4.98%

$2,734,033

-

$(136,124)

$136,124

2019

4.79%

$3,011,947

-

$(144,123)

$144,123

2020

4.38%

$3,014,855

-

$(132,002)

$132,002

2021

Notes to Schedule:
*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Contributions as a
percentage of covered
employee payroll

Covered employer
payroll

-

$(84,102)

Contributions in relation
to the statutorily or
contractually required
contributions

Contribution deficiency
(excess)

$84,102

Statutorily or
contractually required
contributions

2015

Port of Anacortes
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Public Employees’ Retirement System Plan 1
As of December 31,
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
2022

2023

2024
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-

Contribution deficiency
(excess)

5.55%

6.23%

$2,216,729

-

$(138,097)

$138,097

2016

6.77%

$2,372,021

-

$(160,584)

$160,584

2017

7.51%

$2,537,780

-

$(190,568)

$190,568

2018

7.69%

$2,734,033

-

$(210,329)

$210,329

2019

7.92%

$3,011,947

-

$(238,546)

$238,546

2020

7.26%

$3,014,855

-

$(218,817)

$218,817

2021

Notes to Schedule:
*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Contributions as a
percentage of covered
employee payroll

$1,940,212

$(107,712)

Contributions in relation
to the statutorily or
contractually required
contributions

Covered employer
payroll

$107,712

Statutorily or
contractually required
contributions

2015

Port of Anacortes
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Public Employees’ Retirement System Plan 2/3
As of December 31,
Last 10 Fiscal Years*
2022

2023

2024
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20.106

97.056

Airport Improvement
Program and COVID-19
Airports Programs

Port Security Grant
Program

FEDERAL AVIATION
ADMINISTRATION,
TRANSPORTATION,
DEPARTMENT OF

FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT AGENCY,
HOMELAND SECURITY,
DEPARTMENT OF (via Marine
Service Exchange of Puget
Sound)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

-

946,129

78,961

946,129

875,255

70,874

-

From Direct
Awards

66,784

-

Total CFDA 20.106:
EMW-2021-PU00329

-

-

12,177

From PassThrough
Awards

3-53-0001-0242021

3-53-0001-0222020

CV 719-292

Other Award
Number

Total Federal Awards Expended:

20.106

Airport Improvement
Program and COVID-19
Airports Programs

FEDERAL AVIATION
ADMINISTRATION,
TRANSPORTATION,
DEPARTMENT OF

15.616

Clean Vessel Act

Federal Program

CFDA
Number

U.S. FISH AND WILDLIFE
SERVICE, INTERIOR,
DEPARTMENT OF THE (via
Washington Parks)

Federal Agency
(Pass-Through Agency)

Expenditures

Port of Anacortes
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

1,025,090

66,784

946,129

875,255

70,874

12,177

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

Passed through
to
Subrecipients

1, 2, 3

1, 2

1, 2

1, 2, 3

Note

Port of Anacortes

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Note 1 – Basis of Accounting
This Schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the Port of Anacortes’ financial
statements. The Port of Anacortes uses the Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting System for
GAAP in the State of Washington.

Note 2 – Federal De Minimis Indirect Cost Rate
The Port of Anacortes has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Note 3 – Program Costs
The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of the
program costs. Entire program costs, including the Port of Anacortes portion, are more than
shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles in
the OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, or the
cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE
The State Auditor’s Office is established in the Washington State Constitution and is part of the
executive branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the people of Washington
and serves four-year terms.
We work with state agencies, local governments and the public to achieve our vision of increasing
trust in government by helping governments work better and deliver higher value.
In fulfilling our mission to provide citizens with independent and transparent examinations of how
state and local governments use public funds, we hold ourselves to those same standards by
continually improving our audit quality and operational efficiency, and by developing highly
engaged and committed employees.
As an agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively perform
audits, attestation engagements and investigations. Our work is designed to comply with
professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state and local laws. The
Office also has an extensive quality control program and undergoes regular external peer review
to ensure our work meets the highest possible standards of accuracy, objectivity and clarity.
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with federal, state and local laws for all
local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of higher
education. In addition, we conduct performance audits and cybersecurity audits of state agencies
and local governments, as well as state whistleblower, fraud and citizen hotline investigations.
The results of our work are available to everyone through the more than 2,000 reports we publish
each year on our website, www.sao.wa.gov. Additionally, we share regular news and other
information via an email subscription service and social media channels.
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. The Office provides training and technical
assistance to governments both directly and through partnerships with other governmental support
organizations.

Stay connected at sao.wa.gov







Other ways to stay in touch

Find your audit team
Request public records
Search BARS manuals (GAAP and
cash), and find reporting templates
Learn about our training workshops
and on-demand videos
Discover which governments serve you
— enter an address on our map
Explore public financial data
with the Financial Intelligence Tool

Office of the Washington State Auditor

sao.wa.gov



Main telephone:
(564) 999-0950



Toll-free Citizen Hotline:
(866) 902-3900



Email:
webmaster@sao.wa.gov
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